ANNUAL REPORT

OF

ASA INTERNATIONAL INDIA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN:- U65921WB1990PLC231683

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Park, 4th Floor, GN-37/2, Sector Salt lake City,
Kolkata-700091, West Bengal, India
Phone No: 033 23578508
Email ID:- india@asaindiamf.com

FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

AUDITORS

SHANKAR SARAF & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

11, Dacers Lane, 1% Floor,
Kolkata-700 069
e-mail : Subham@ssaa.co.in




] CA SHANKAR SARAF & ASSOCIATES 11, Dacres Lane, 1st Floor, Kolkata - 700069
Ph: +91 33 2262 4441/42, +91 33 4063 7100

Chartered Accountants A
E-mail : shankar@ssaa.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF ASA INTERNATIONAL INDIA MICROFINANCE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ASA International India Microfinance Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. In respect of Credit balance aggregating Rs. 0.51 crore in the account of several
borrowers shown under Note 8 : Other Current Liabilities under line item “
Refundable to Borrower” it is not ascertainable whether such credit balance has
arisen due to data entry or other errors in the books of accounts or excess payment
received from the borrowers. The effect of the same on the state of affairs, profit and
cash flow is not ascertainable. In the opinion of the management considering the size
of the company and nature of its business the amount is not material. However, in
our view considering the loss for the year, the amount is material.

i !

b. During the year, the Company has recognized an income of Rs. 41.50 crore (Being
65% of bad debts of Rs. 63.84 crore written off in earlier years) as extra-ordinary
income recoverable from Assam State Government for which claims are made after
end of the financial year. In our opinion, such recognition of income is not consistent
with the accounting policy in the Financial Year 2022-23 whereas similar income was
recognised on actual receipt. Furthermore, in our opinion the policy to recognise
only 65% of the bad debts as income during the Financial Year 2023-24 ( which in the
opinion of management is receivable in the Financial Year 2024-25) and not

. recognising the balance amount of 35% of the bad debts is also not correct. The
accounting policy adopted is not in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in as much as that the recogi@%ﬁ income is neither based on
expected recovery of bad debts in futuré Pefiod no d upon actual recovery
during the year. ]
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Emphasis of Matter

a) As on March 31, 2024, the company has shown a liability of Rs. 7.65 crore as per
AS-15 Employee Benefits which appears under Note 6 (A) as line item Provision of
Gratuity. In our opinion, there is an excess provision of Rs. 3.86 crore on this account.
The same has also resulted into understatement of free reserves of the company by
Rs. 3.86 crore. ) '

b) The company has not recognised deferred tax assets amounting Rs. 45.30 crores
approx. over the timing difference of Rs. 180 Crore approx in respect of business loss
available for set off against profits of subsequent years whereas on the other hand the
company has recognized deferred tax assets in respect of other timing difference. The
management has not been able to explain the divergent approach of accounting
treatment in respect of similar item which is not in accordance with the AS-21
(Deferred Tax Asset) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

¢) Even in cases where the returns filed by the company has been accepted by the
Income-tax Department in summary or regular assessment, the company has not
adjusted the Provision for Income-tax with corresponding tax payments. The same
has resulted into overstatement of Provision for Income-tax shown under Note 11:
Short Term Provision as well as Income Tax Payments shown under Note: Short
Term Loan and Advances. In the absence of year wise break-up of Income Tax
Provision and Income Tax Payments being provided by the management, we are
unable to quantify the effect of the same.

d) During the year, the company has acted as business correspondence for IDFC
Bank however the company has not been able to provide with the counter-party
confirmation for the portfolio.

e) Considering the volume of the operations of the company, we have verified the
loans and advances on sample basis.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements
£ = ;

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

internal financial controls that were operating effectiv@{ﬁ- hedring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the'pt

financial statement that give a true and fair view ané_‘r‘

whether due to fraud or error. &



SHANKAR SARAF & ASSOCIATES CONTINUATION SHEET

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

-
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
' statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

In view of the above, the management of ASA India and all its stakeholders are(::e fi
that the company will continue to perform and continue to remain sustainable.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we sought but were
unable to obtain all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of accdunt as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with .

the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; ﬁFAF d 4
P, b4 & O
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(e) The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act; '

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us;

i. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note
No. 30 to the financial statements;

ii. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer, any amount to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ('Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund have been received by
the company from any persons(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding

' Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any margxqgf\z;hag er by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or/é_ i antee, security or the like on behalf of

i

=3 e m
ﬁ;f hgﬁ&[a

the Ultimate beneficiaries.
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c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e), as

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. The Company has migrated to Br.Net from AMB software during the year and is

in the process of establishing necessary controls and documentations regarding audit

trail. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said

software.

Based on our examination the company is using accounting software maintained by
third party which confirms that the accounting software have audit trail feature.
However the audit trails are not accessible to the company or the auditors. So we are
unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the
software or whether there any instance of the audit trail feature been tampered with.

The third party provided us the audit trail relating to changes made.

(3) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16)

of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/ payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to

any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of

the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Shankar Saraf & Associates s
Chartered Accountants

Subham Tulsian
Partner
Membership No. 313573

' Place: Kolkata _
Date: 27 of June, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(With reference to the Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal
and regulatory requirements’ of the Independent Auditor’s report to the members of ASA
International India Microfinance Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report
that: ' '

(i) (@) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property plant & equipment.

(B)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
Assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that the Property, Plant and Equipment have
not been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals. Therefore
we are unable to comment whether there are any material discrepancies in physical
PPE and as per books. However, considering the nature of assets lying at the branch,
we recommend that physical verification of assets lying in all branches should be
done at least once in a year.

(c) Based on our examination of the documents provided to us, we report that, the
title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including
right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable. ’

(e) Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the
company and based on the information and explanation provided by the
management, no proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any benami property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

(ii)  (a) The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and consequently does
not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) During the year, the company had not availed working capital limits from banks
and financial institutions and hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(iii)  (a) Clause 3(iii)(a) is not applicable to the company since the company’s principal
business is to give loans.

(b) Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the
company and based on the information and explanation provided by the
management, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company’s interests.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that loans
and advances given to employees are in the nature of loans where schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated and therefore
we are unable to comment whether the repayments or receipts are regular;

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
for all Loans and advances in the nature of loans except employee loans. The
classification of loans and their repayment or receipts are as follows:- “

Count of Amount (¥ | Due Date Extent of Remarks, if any
Borrowers in Lakhs) delay
1732 4.86 Various 1-30
1711 16.32 Various 31-60
1573 27.35 Various 61-90
2926 166.14 Various 90+ Provision exists as
per RBI norms

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the record of the company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans (and advance in the nature of loan) given except
amounts aggregating to I 166.14 lakhs (principal amount) and X 45.80 lakhs
(interest) overdue for more than ninety days as at 31t March 2024. In our opinion
reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of principal and
interest.
-

(e) The principal business of the Company is to give loans, hence the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters and
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, therefore
this clause does not apply to the company.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to }lﬁ;? 38

Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of th?’iﬁf ¢t in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees given, where applicabl

) «:’/
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The Company has not provided any security for which the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act are applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, the provisions of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and any
other statutory dues applicable to it during the year with appropriate authorities. -

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, as on 31st March,
2024 and the records of the company examined by us, there are no dues of income-
tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the

following;:
Act Forum where case is pending | Period Amount
(¥ In Lakhs)
The Income Tax Commissioner of Income Tax | AY 2011-12 1,293.36
Act’ 1961 (Appeal) and
AY 2012-13

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no
instances of any transactions not recorded in the books gf account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that during the year, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any bank or financial institution or government. However, we draw your
attention to paragraph no. “a” of the Emphasis of Matter in the main Audit Report.

(b) Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of%‘\\
company and based on the information and explanation provided
management, we report that the Company has not been declared as
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any government authority.
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(c) Based on our examination of the Books of Accounts and other Records of the
company and based on the information and explanation provided by the
management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans
for the purpose for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie not
been utilized for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31st March 2024.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company does not have any subsidiaries as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable.

(x)  (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi)  (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the fraud reported during the year was misappropriation of cash
amounting to (1 2.75 lakhs by the employee of the Company. Aforesaid fraud has
been disclosed in the Note No. 32(O) Disclosure of frauds in the notes forming part
of the Financial Statement. As informed, service of the employee has been terminated
and the company has taken legal action against the concerned employee.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, has been filed in
form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year

applicable. 23 SpRATF & 4o
(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 and /A
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the relgte

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, clauses 3(xii) of the Order is ,uak\\\
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and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the note 27 of the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We were unable to obtain on timely basis the internal audit reports of the
company, hence the internal audit report have not been considered by us.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence reporting requirement
under Clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and has obtained registration vide registration no. B-
05.07083.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
conducted Non-Banking Financial Companies activities during the year under a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBL
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year and the immediately
preceding financial year. .

(xviii) The Previous statutory auditor had resigned creating a Casual vacancy. We have
duly taken into consideration the issues, objections, or concerns raised (if any) by the
outgoing auditors.

(xix) We draw attention to the Note 35 in the financial statements, which indicates that the
Company has on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that an
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state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Shankar Saraf & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration

ng\n oxan TS
Subham Tulsian

Partner
Membership No.

\Z, % e
313573 60 AccOS

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27" of June, 2024
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (e) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the Members of ASA INTERNATIONAL INDIA
MICROFINANCE LIMITED

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub -
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ASA International
India Microfinance Limited (“the Company”) as at 31st March 2024, in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient condust of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

; Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in_ac accordance with the
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audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.” '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of

the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;*

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

‘ acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on

the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
possible effects of the matters described in the Qualified Opinion paragraph of our report on
the financial statements and in view of the material weaknesses described in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion paragraph below on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, the Company has not maintained adequate and effective internal financial controls
over financial reporting as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”),

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31 March 2024
financial statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses have affected our
opinion on the said financial statements of the Company and we have issued a Qualified

Opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
Basis for Qualified Opinion

. { 3 -
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified in the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting as at 31t March 2024.

However, we draw attention to the following weakness noticed by us but our opinion is not
modified since we conducted various substantive checks in area of weaknesses noted to
validate the transactions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2024:

L ARAF
o The company’s existing IT software 1 —N(ihange and certain transitional

deficiencies have been noted. This ire moch 1cat10n of the risk matrix and
documentation procedures.
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e In view of the matters described in the basis of Qualified Opinion and other
concerned misstatements, the company did not have adequate controls over the
entity’s financial reporting process, including the financial statements closure

process.

For Shankar Saraf & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 325896E

Subham Tulsian f - v
Partner %,/ @‘\'5",
Membership No. 313573 \\%’g‘ﬁ@g\ﬁf

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27% of June, 2024



ASA International India Microfinance Limited
CIN No:U63921WBI990PLC231683
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Z (N LAKHS
As at As at
Particulars Nuotes March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
®) ®)
I. Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share Capital 3 196 196
Reserves and Surplus 4 3,882 3,418
4,078 3,614
Non-current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 11,104 13,375
Long-term provisions 6 1,759 3,559
12,863 16,934
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowing 5 5,061 12,154
Trade payables 7 26 102
Other current liabilitics 8 2,000 1,603
Short-term provisions 6 - -
7,088 13,860
Total 24,028 34,409
1. Assets
Non-current Assels
Property, Plant and Equipment 9A 135 121
Intangible assets 9B 39 14
Deferred tax assets 10 1,850 987
Loans and advances 11 2,058 7.233
Other Non-current assets 12 208 271
4,290 8,625
Current Assets
Trade Receivables 13 2,134 2,116
Cash and Cash Equivalent 14 508 3,054
Loans and Advances 11 13,692 17,694
Other Current assels 12 3,404 2920
19,738 25,783
Total 24,028 34,409
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.
As per our repport of even date .
For Shankar Saraf & Associates S i -
Chartered Accountants For and on behalCof-the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No: 3 AS na}f"ng.l‘ l_ml‘ip ncrol' inance Limited -
“l“‘S\ ‘A’, ' 54
/Y \C‘ 11\
1! 3 =
ngmom KOLKATA | e
: -~ . AL
Subham Tulsian -M!d. Enamul\Hgq 9
Partner Director S’
Membership No. 313573 DIN 02961971
/ \t‘Dch

Place: Kolkata
Date: 271h June, 2024

A
VM e /l/nu
Vanita \rl (.l’hr;(_);n{
Company ecl' lary
Membership N}\&_Jj:lé




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
CIN No:U65921WB1990PLC231683
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

X IN LAKHS

Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars Notes 2024 2023
@ ®

I. Income

Revenue [rom operations 15 8.805 12,036

Other income 16 458 4,819
Total revenue 9,263 16,855
11. Expenses

Employee benefits expense 17 5.748 5,898

Finance costs 18 3,014 5,821

Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 64 60

Other expenses 20 1,178 2.152

Provisions and write-offs 21 4,088 2,838
Total expenses 14,092 16,769
Profit before tax and Extraodinary Items (4,828) 87
Extraordinary Items 16(b) 4428
Profit after Extraordinary Items and before Tax (400) 87
Tax expense
Current Year - -
Earlier Year [Refer note 1] - ' (528)
Deferred tax credit (864) (987)
Total tax expenses (864) (1,514)
Profit for the year 463 1,601

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our repport of even date
For Shankar Saraf & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 3

Subham Tulsian /@fﬁ’dﬂ o
Partner

Membership No. 313573

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th June, 2024

For and on behalf.of the Board of Directors of
ASA International India Microfinance Limited

]/waéx Lo

Vanita Mimd‘h;a 3

Company b ECt




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
CIN No:U63921WEB1990P LC231683
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

T IN LAKkHS
Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
) ®)

A. Cash flow from operating activities : 2 ’

Profit before tax (400) 87
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 64 60

Provisions and write-ofTs{Net OfT) 3688 (1,338)

Gain from sale of Fixed Assels 20 (146)

Liabilities Written Back - -

Interest on IT Refund (5) -

Interest on fixed deposits (54) (231)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3271 (1,569)
Movements in working capital:

Increase in loans and advances 7,340 24 966

Increase in other assels 484 2,359

Increase in provisions {4,037) (2,937)

Decrease/ (increase) in margin money deposits (net) (289) 4,779

Increase/ (decrease ) in other current liabilities 421 (1,070)
Cash used in operations 7,190 26,518

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) - (516)
Net Cash Now used in operating activities (A) 7,190 - 26,012 o
. Cash Mow from investing activities :

Purchase of property, plant and equipmenis (66) @)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 66 146

Nel proceeds from purchase and sale of investments 2 -

Interest on fixed deposits 54 231
Net cash flow used in investing activities () 54 368
C. Cash flow from financing activities :

Interest on IT Refund 5 =

Repayment of short-lerm borrowings (7,093) (46,909)

Proceeds from long-lerm borrowings 2,160 -

Repayment of long-term borrowings -4,431.37 9994
Net Cash flow generated from financing activities (C) (9,359) (36,915)
Net increase in cash and cash equival (A+B+C) (2,116) (10,534)
Cash and cash equivalenis al the beginning of the year 2497 13,032
Cash And Cash Equivalents al the end of the year (refer note 15) 382 2497

S y of significant acc ing policies (refer note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial stalements.

As per our repport of even date
For Shankar Saral & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 323

Subham Tulsian
Partner
Membership No. 313573

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27th June, 2024

For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of

< Director
DIN 02961971

g
Vanita Munc!ilmfi :

Company Secretary. \,
Membership No. A23346..




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Corporate information

ASA International India Microfinance Limited (“the Company”) is a Company domiciled and incorporated in India. The Company
is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC-ND’) registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) as a
NBFC-MFI, a micro-finance institution.

The Company is a subsidiary of ASA International Holdings (ASAIH), Mauritius, an internaltional micro-finnace institution.

The Company is engaged in providing microfinance loans for business purposes to low-income entrepreneurs with the objective to
improve financial inclusion and realise socioeconomic progress, mostly women who are organized into small self help groups.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act"), read together with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, provisions of the RBI applicable as per
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Imporiant Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR. PD. 007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016, as amended from
time to time (‘the NBFC Master Directions, 2016") and other applicable clarifications provided by RBI.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention, on accrual basis, and going concern basis.
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the standalone financial statements.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cyc]e and other
criteria as set out in the Part [ of Schedule IIL.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies/ accounting estimate
2.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively. The company has not revalued any Property, Plant and Equipment during the current year or in the
previous year.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible Assets

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost ofgringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use The company had no immovable properties during the current year or previous year. Therefore
requirement of holding of Title Deeds of all Immovable Properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) by the company in its own name is not applicable.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are are initially measured at cost. Cost comprises its purchase prices including duties and taxes and any
costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for its intended use. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Computer software is amortized using the written down value method at a rate of 40% per annum.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment is calculated on the written down value method as per the useful life
prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, which is the useful lives of the underlying assets as estimated by the
management.

Type of Assets Period
Buildings 30 Years | -
Plant and Equipment 15 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Computers 4 Years
Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs includes interests which are recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable on the borrowings.

Processing fees and ancillary fees incurred for arrangement of borrowings from banks and financial institutions are amortised over
the period of the loan.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date, on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Current
investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision
for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being
determined and made for each investment individually.

On disposal of investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds are charged or credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Interest income on portfolio loans is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on time proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the rates applicable, except in the case of non-performing assets (“NPA’s"), where it is recognized,
upon realization, as per prudential norms of RBI. Any such income recognised before the assets become non-performing and
remaining unrealized are reversed.

Interest income on Term Deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable. i i

Processing fees are recognized as income over the period of the loan on a time proportion.

Income from services rendered in connection with loans given on behalf of banks / NBFCs to joint liability groups / individual
liability groups organized / monitored by the Company are recognized on accrual basis as and when such services are rendered.

Profit / premium arising at the time of securitization / assignment of loan portfolio is amortized over the life of the underlying loan
portfolio / securities and any loss arising therefrom is accounted for immediately. Income from interest strip (excess interest
spread) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss account net of any losses at the time of actual receipt. Interest retained
under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on realization basis over the life of the underlying loan portfolio.
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2.8 Foreign currency transactions

Initial Recognition
On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition c .

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period.

Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.9 Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund for eligible employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry
any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible employees, appointed
after 31.7.2011, in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. For all other existing employees as of 31.7.2011 the
gratuity payment is as per a separate "Gratuity Plan" formulated by the company.

The Gratuity Plans provide for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company's liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses / gains are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

The Company has maintained funds with the Life Insurance Corporation of India under the Group Gratuity Scheme for the
liability relating to employees under the two schemes.

Compensated Absences: Such benefits of compensated absences are not allowed to be encashed and so no provision for the
accrual or accumulationis made or accounted.

2.10 Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. )

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. At each
Balance Sheet date, the group reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

" L

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax
assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws




2.11 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effeets of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date
and are not discounted to its present value.

2.13 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability,

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments
with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.15 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. giving loans and other related activities, which have similar risks and
returns for the purpose of Accounting Standard-17 on ‘Segment Reporting’. The Company operates in a single geographical
segment i.e. India.

2.16 Exceptional and Extra ordinary Items

Extraordinary items, i.e. gains or losses which arise from events or transactions which are distinct from ordinary activities of the
company which are material are separately disclosed in the statement of accounts

2.17 Classification of Portfolio loans
Loans are classified as follows:
Assel Classification Period of loan oustanding

All assets for which, interest/principal payment has remained overdue
for a period less than 90 days and no default in repayment of}
Standard principal or payment of interest is perceived or which does not
disclose any problem nor carry more than normal risk attached to the
business.

All assets for which, interest/principal payment has remained overdue
for a period of 90 days or more.

L

Non-Performing Assets

“Overdue” means interest and / or instalment remaining unpaid from the day it become receivable.

The above classification is in compliance with Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Finance Institutions (NBFC-MFIs
Directions, September 1, 2016, as amended from time to time (‘the NBFC-MFI Directions’).




2.18 Provision for loan portfolio
Provision on portfolio loans are made at the higher of management estimates or minimum provision required as per RBI directions
issued in this behalf.

(i)As per the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company —Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, the aggregate loan provision to be maintained by NBFC-MFIs at any point of time shall not be
less than the higher of a) 1% of the outstanding loan portfolio or b) 50% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for
more than 90 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for 180 days or more
and management estimates of future losses, whichever is higher.

(ii)Further as per circular DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020 ('Regulatory Package’), the lending
institutions were permitted to grant a moratorium of three months on payment of all term loan instalments falling due between
March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 (‘moratorium period’). As such, in line with the clarification provided by the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision, in respect of all accounts classified as standard as on February 29, 2020, even if overdue, the
moratorium period, wherever granted, shall be excluded by the lending institutions from the number of days past-due for the
purpose of asset classification under the IRAC norms.

(iii)Provision for losses arising under securitized/managed portfolio is on the basis of incurred losses (shortfall in collection),
subject to the maximum guarantee given in respect of such arrangements.

({iv)Overdue loans are written-off, when the prospect for recovery is considered remote as per management estimate.

(v) The company had written off loan portfolio for overdue days of more than 365 days (with nil recovery in last six months) and
210 days as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively. No such write off has been made in 2023-24, An amount of Rs.
5,631.49 lakhs has been netted of against Provision and Portfolio as Technical write off for overdue loans more than 125 days
overdue as on September 2023,

(vi) The Company has maintained the provisioning on standards assets at .40 % for the previous year and this year as well as per
the latest RBI guidelines.

2.19 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.20 Derivative Financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains / (losses).

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating
overseas borrowings.

The Company does not use forward contracts for speculative purposes

These ECB loans were received from the holding company "ASA International NV" in Indian Currency in this financial year,
hence no hedging is done.

-
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ASA International India Microfinance Limited
CIN No:U6S921 WBI199PLC231683
Notes to the Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3 e ; As at As at
e March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
% in Lakhs Tin Lakhs

Authorized Shares
10,01,000 (March 31, 2024: 10,01,000) equity shares of  100/- each 1,001 1,001

1,001 1,001
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
196,188 (March 31, 2024: 1,96,188) equity shares of ¥ 100/- each 196 196

196 196

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 196 196

A.  Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Numb T in Lakhs Numb: T in Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 1.96,188 196 1,96,188 196
Issued during the year 5 - = 3
Adjustment during the year (As per scheme of merger) - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,96,188 196 1,96,188 196

B. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 2100 per equity share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share|
held.

The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors will be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing general meeting. Durlng the
current financial year the Company has not proposed/declared any dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

There exists a Shareholders Agreement with IDFC First Bank Ltd (erstwhile IDFC Bank Ltd) whereby they have agreed to hold 9.99% shares in the
Company and such shares shall rank parri passu with its oustanding issued equity shares with respect to all stock activities, including but not limited to
voting rights, dividends and rights issuance.

As per the Agreement, ASAIH cannot dilute its shares to below 51% and shall retain control over the Company. Also, ASAIH shall not be permitted to
created any lien on their shareholding without specific written approval from IDFC First Bank Limited. .

C. Shares held by holdinge company
Out of equity issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries are as below:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares held ¥ in Lakhs No. of Shares held % in Lakhs
Equity Shares of ¥ 100 each fully paid ]
ASA International Holdings (ASAIH), Mauritius, 1,76,595 177 1.76,595 177
D. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Natoe ol Shirehalder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Equity Shares of T 100 each fully paid -
ASA_Intemational Holding (ASAIH), Mauritius, the 1.76.595 90.01% 1.76.595 90.01%
Holding Company
IDFC First Bank Limited 19,581 9.98% 19,581 9.98%
E. Details of shareholdings by the Promoter’s of the Company T # < ”
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Promoter name
No of shares % of total shares No of shares % of total shares
ASA International Holding (ASAIH), Mauritius, 1,76,595 90.01% 1.76,595 90.01%
Dirk Brouwer 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Total promoters share 1,76.596 90.01% 1,76,596 90.01%

F.  No shares were allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares or pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the last five years.
Further, none of the shares were bought back by the Company during the last five years,

G.  Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during 5 years immediately preceding March 31,
30,233 Equity Shares were allotted as fully paid up (3100 each) pursuant to Scheme of arrangement in September 2020, in lieu of and by cancellation of
29,955 fully paid up ( 2 100 each) Equity Shares as per the Scheme approved by honourable NCLT, Kolkata Bench.




ASA International India Microfinance Limited
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As at March 31,

Reserves and Surplus 2024 As at March 31, 2023
% in Lakhs Tin Lakhs

Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning of the year 11,540 11,540
Add: On issue of equity shares - -
Balance as at close of the year 11,540 11,540
Note: Securities Premium represents the amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares.
Statutory reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2310 1,990
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 93 320
Balance as at close of the year 2,403 2,310
Note: Statutory Reserve represents a Fund created in compliance with Section 45 1C of the RBI Act 1934
by transfer of a minimum of 20% of the profit for the year.
General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 50 50
Add: Addition during the year
Balance as at close of the year 50 50
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (10,482) (11,763)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 463 1,661
Less: Appropriations

Transferred to statutory reserve (@ 20% as per Sec 45-1C of RBI Act 1934) 93 320
Balance as at close of the year (10,112) (10,482)
Total Reserves and Surplus (A+B+C+D) 3,882 3418

Long-term borrowings

Non Current portion

Current maturities

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023| A5 ;f,;:“h 3| Asat March 31, 2023
¥ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs % in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Secured
Debentures (privately placed) = 3.000 3,797 10,407
Terms loans - - - -
From banks - - - -
From Financial Institution 278 375 1,264 375
From non banking finance companies = - - 1,372
External commercial borrowings 826 - - -
1,104 3,375 5,061 12,154
Unsecured
Term loans from banks 2,500 2,500 - -
Debentures (privately placed) 7.500 7,500 - -
10,000 10,000 - -
Total borrowings 11,104 13,375 , 5,061 12,154
Amount disclosed under the head "other current liabilities " - - 4 (5.061) (12,154)
Total 11,104 13,375 - -

Refer Note 5A and 5B for terms of repayment of debentures, term loans, deferred payment credit and sub-ordinated debt.
The Company has utilized the proceeds from Banks and Financial Institutions towards the specific purpose for which they were raised.

As at 31-Mar-2024 or as at 31-Mar-2023 there were no charges details of which had not been filed with Registrar of Companies. As at 31-Mar-2024 or as at
31-Mar-2023, there were no satisfaction of charges details of which had not been filed with Registrar of Companies.

The Company had entered into a restructuring agreement with its holding entity, "ASA International NV" wherein payment of interest
on loan amounting to Rs.82,66,355, which was due on April'2024 was deferred to June'2024. However, company expects to further restructure

the agreement and defer the payment to September' 2024.




SA Borrowings { Conte.}

Terms of repnyment of Debentures, Teem Loans and External Commereial Boerowings ns on March 31, 2024

{Amount T in Iakhs)

Deseriptinns

D within 1 year*

Due between 1 and

No. of nstalments

Na. of Instalments

Amount
T

Due between 2 und 3 Years

No, of
Instalments

Amount
T

Due between 3 and S Years

No. of
Instalments

Amount
T

Interest Rate

Tutul

Maonthly repayment schiedule

From NBFCs:

-3 Yrs,

396 TR

3797

3-5%m

From NBFUs;

-3 ¥rs.

3-5¥m.

Un-veenred

Bullei repayment schedule

From NBFCs:

0-3 ¥rs.

3-5¥m

13

16.67%

7,500,000

Term Loans

Secured

pment schedule

Fromn NBFCs:

0.3 ¥rs.

1.264.35

IT198

5.0

1,542.33

From Fls:

-3 Yrs.

Unsecured

Bullet repayment sehedule

From Banks:

03 ¥m

2,500,000

14.25%

2,500.0M0

3-5¥m

Bullet repuyment schedule

From Others (Hulding Com pany)

-3 Yrs,

826

11.B0%

A26.00

Lirand Tatal

506112

277798

K260

7.51H0.00

16,165.11

Mote;

Au Debentures
Secured

Non-convertible debentures issued by the Company are secured by way of first ranking exelusive hypothecation / charge: on the ownid portfolin of the Company to e extent of security cover rtin of 1.1:1 in Tavour of the debemure holders.

Unsecured

As il March 31 e Company has

B. Term Loans

Term loans froms banks and others are secured by way o hypothecation of the outstanding loan porsfolio, i addition 10 he fised deposits being held as colliternl seo

privately placed deb

ing to Rs 7,500 lakhs which were issved as subordinated deb.

o with a carmrying

The term loans carties interest in (e range of 5.00% per annum to 14.25% per annum,

anl of Rs. 826 lakhs. however, the same was received in INK. henee o bedging is being dooe. These long-term loans are repayable
are secured by first prieeity pari-press charge the outstanding loan poctiolio.




JCXIIARE

S5 Borrowings (Comd |

Terms: of repayment of Debeiwtures, Term Loats sl External Commercial Borrawlngs as an March 31, 2023
{ At i lakhs)

Dwme within | year* Dhise between 1 and 2 vears Duee ertween 2 amd 3 Venrs hetween 3 and 5 Years
iy
pbans ok of Lt bt Amount Nt of Instalments Armunt Na, of Amint Nu. of Amaunt Imterest Rate Total

T L4 Instnlments L4 Instalments I

_.a.nn.._;n

Hall-yearty repayient schedule

From NBFCs:
-3 ¥
3-5%m

2 S04 f 3000, D6 11.42% 3520

Tuller repayment schedube
From NBFCs;
-3 Vs 3 9850
3-5%n

1208% to | 3,50 958K

La-seemsed

'
Huller et schedule
From NEFCs:
13 ¥rs,
3-5¥n

-

T A0HRIHY 1667 750000

Turm Loans

Secwred

Half-yearly sehdule

schedube

s 19635 13.75% 196,35

4 375000 F] 375,00 S0P T50.00

Munthly repayment schedule
Frivm Ranks:
[ERTS

191 1.175.35 ] 1] 12.50% 1o 13.75% 1,175

1 2500400 14.25% 2.5400.00

Exterpal Cs Borrewing:

Bulbet repayment schedule

From NRFCs: |
SRS

Ltirand Total 12.154.41 30000 187535 TS0 15,5319.76
A. Debentures s

Secured

Nan-convertible debenbures fsued by the Company are secumed by way of first ranking exclusive bypothecation | charge on the vaned portfalio of the Company o the extent of security caver mtoof 1111 i favour of the debemun: bolders.
Unsecured

As at March 310 2002, the Company bas cutstanding unsecoral non-converidble privotely placed debenmures smounting 1o R 7500 kakhs which were issued ns subordinnied debit

B, Term Loans

erm fans From banks and cahers are secunal by way of hypothecation of the autstanding lnan partfifio. i addition 19 the e deposits being beld s coltateral securisy. The ferms loans carries interest in the rnge of 9.00% per annom in 14,24% per annum
. Esternal Commsreial Barrowings

The Co ¥ b obtained cuernat commercial borrowing Bxlites of US1 3 millxmn an
D 112 and carthes an inleres! rabe of EVRIBOR + 4.3
“Thie Crnmpiany holds derivative inistrument e inferest fale swa

1100 milkion with a capryimg amoant of Ks. 2070 lakis apd Rs, 7855 ks from the enlity - Mikrofinanzfands. These lnag-term loans an sepaynbie haough bullel repayment in July 2022 and

itigatc the risk of changes in exchange rates and farcign ey exposure. The tenare af ECHs and derivative mstruments afe same and bence are treated as perfectly hedged.
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Provisions: Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2024|As at March 31,2023 % “'2;;:"‘ 3| As at March 31, 2023
¥ in Lakhs Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity® 766 816 &
766 816 - -
Provision for portfolio loans ( Refer note 23)
On standard assets 123 - -
On non performing assets 131 1,824
{Provision amounting to Rs. 56,31,48,585 is netted off
253 1,824 - -
Others
Provision for securitised/managed portfolio loans ( Refer 578 783 - -
Provision for employee advances 162 135 - -
740 918 - -
Total 1,759 3,559 - -

*The Company on the basis of management decision had provided for the provision of Rs. 861.62 lakhs for the previous year. However, as per acturial
valuation, liability as on 31st of March'2024 amounts to Rs. 765.53, Company has reversed the excess provision created in current financial year.

Trade payables Ayt :;;:ch i, As at March 31, 2023
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs

Other dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 26 102

Total 26 102

disclosure in this regard has been made in absence of any information for the same.

* None of the vendors have informed that they are register under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the MSMED') and so no

Ageing of the Trade payables as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

MSME - = - - -
Others 26.10 : B - 26.10
Disputed dues
(MSMEs) i ) ) i
Disputed
dues(others) i ) ) )

Total 26.10 : - - 26.10

Ageing of the Trade payables as on 31st March 2023
Particulars Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

MSME - 5 - - -
Others 101.75 - - 101.75
Disputed dues
(MSMEs) ) ) )
Disputed
dues(others) ) ) ) )

Total 101.75 - - 101.75
Other Current liabilities i g:];:“h 3, | Agat Maren 31, 2023

% in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 851 608
Payable fo Banks towards securitization transactions ¥ = 1] .
Payable to Banks/NBFCs against BC arrangement 62 218
Payable to Banks against Direct Assignment 21 112
Employee benefits 457 255
Security deposits 90 106
Insurance premium 7 8
Statutory dues 132 182
Other payables 23 108
Refundable to borrower* 51 -
Advance from Borrowers 307 -
Total 2,000 1,603

* Recovery of Rs. 50.94 lakhs has been made from the borrowers. However, due to migration of software, borrowers are not traceable. Company is in

process of finding the particular borrower and shall adjust the same against their loan in due course of time.

T FAYADIE W DANKS/ VD EUS UNUET DUSLLESS COTTES PUTUETNL ATl ZEHICITLIEPIESEIS HOUnNT CONECIE ITOTH CUSIOMIEDS 10T IUANS UISOUTSEU UNUET DUSLIESS
correspondant arrangements with Banks/NBFCs. As per terms of arrangements, such amounts are repaid on fixed monthly instalments, The amount collected

out of such disbursement is shown in "Other Current Liabilities".
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Deferred tax assets: non-current axat ;‘(l;:ch a, As at March 31, 2023
¥ in Lakhs 2in Lakhs

Impact of difference between written down value of depreciable assets as per books of account and for 47 54

income tax purposes

Impact of provision on portfolio, managed loans and other receivables 1,803 932

Impact of unabsorbed business losses™ ] =

Total . 1,850 987

*The company has decided as a prudent policy not to recognise deferred tax asset on Carry over business losses amounting to Rs.175,53,27,765 resulting in
deferred tax asset of Rs. 44,17,80,892.

Loans and advances Non-current Current
: o i As at March 31,
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) As at March 31, 2024|As at March 31, 2023 2024 As at March 31, 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs % in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Portfolio loans
Individual loans:
Considered good - 496 8,298.89 17,293
Considered doubtful - 4,880 388 -
- 5,376 8,687 17,293
Capital Advances - 25 -
= 23 - -
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Balances with Branch 43 77
Considered good - 170 140
- - 212 217
Others
Considered good
Prepaid expenses - - 49 52
Gratuity Fund with LIC 226 136 - -
Advance income tax* 6,823 6,355 - ! -
Less: Provision for Taxation (4,991) (4,528) - =
1,832 1,828 - -
Other receivables - - 579 96
Less: Provision - - (37) (36)
543 60
Balance lying with Statutory Authorities 4 4 5l 72
Recoverable under Assam Relief Scheme - - 4,150 -
(Gross recoverable amount Rs. 63,84,45,226/-) 2,058 1,831 4,793 184
Total 2,058 7,233 13,692 17,694

*Represents standard assets/Sub-standard assets classified in accordance with the Master Directions of RBI and provisions made accordingly.

#* The company have received demands aggregating to ¥12.93 crores in respect of Assessment year 2011-2012 & 2012-2013, which has been contested by
the company and is pending under appeal with ITAT Kolkata. The company has provided for T 4,63 crores against the demand and the balance amount is
disclosed under contingent liability under Note 29, *

Further, the departemnt has adjusted various refunds available by the company against refund dues for AY 2013 to AY 2022-23 and the net receivable of T
9.78 crores is accounted for by a credit in the staterment of Profit and Loss account. This amount will finally be adjusted on disposal of the appeal.

*++Represents amount receivable in respect of deceased borrowers

* The company have received demands aggregating to 12.93 crores in respect of Assessment year 2011-2012 & “’,012-3_013, which has been contested by
the company and is pending under appeal with ITAT Kolkata. The company has provided for Z 4,63 crores against the demand and the balance amount is ~
disclosed under contingent liability under Note 29,

Further, the departemnt has adjusted various refunds available by the company against refund dues for AY 2013 to AY 2022-23 and the net receivable of 2
9.78 crores is accounted for by a credit in the statement of Profit and Loss account, This amount will finally be adjusted on disposal of the appeal.

The company has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Persons and Other Related Parties either
severally or jointly with any other persons which are (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The company has not obtained any credit facilities either in the current year or in the previous year from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets.

As at 31-Mar-2024 or as at 31-Mar-2023 there were no charges details of which had not been filed with Registrar of Companies. As at 31-Mar-2024 or as at
31-Mar-2023, there were no satisfaction of charges details of which had not been filed with Registrar of Companies.

The management on the basis of its estimate has evaluated to the tune of Rs, 6,384.45 lakhs which is receivable from The Assam Government' towards the
Assam portfolio. Company has recognised only 65% on conservative basis and it expects to renew the MOU for the claim of the said amount. 'The Company
during the year under reporting has given loan to employees, tenure is more than two years. Hence, the company has provided maximum’ amount as
provision on such receivable and will continue to make such.
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9B

Property, Plant and Equipment

{Amount ¥ in lakhs)

Furniture and

Office

Particulars - Computers = Vehicles Total
Fixtures equipments
At March 31, 2022 249.32 408.24 314.66 14.03 986.25
Additions 0.33 0.71 20.29 - 21.33
Disposals (12.32)] - - = = (12.32)
At March 31, 2023 237.34 408.95 334.96 14.03 995.27
Additions 0.3480 - 36.7200 289151 65.98
Disposals (27.5830) - (70.2198) (13.4136) (111.22)
At March 31,2024 210.10 408.95 301.46 29.54 950.04
Depreciation
At March 31, 2022 164.32 381.00 273.62 12.70 831.64
Charge for the year 21.56 7.05 21.85 0.40 50.86
Disposals (8.23) - - - {8.23)
At March 31, 2023 177.64 388.05 295.47 13.10 874.27
Charge for the year 14.20 1.38 19.51 5.71 40.80
Disposals (21.01) - (66.51) (12.76) (100.28)
At March 31,2024 170.84 389.43 248.47 6.05 814.79
Net Block
At March 31, 2023 59.69 20.89 39.49 0.93 121.00
At March 31,2024 39.26 19.52 52.98 23.48 135.25

*The company has not revalued any Property, Plant and Equipment during the current year or in the previous year.
*The company had no immovable properties during the current year or previouws year. Therefore requirement of holding of Title Deeds of
all Immovable Properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) by the company in its own name is not applicable.

Intangible Assets: % in lakhs
Particulars Software

At March 31, 2022 11991
Additions

Disposals -
At March 31, 2023 120.00
Additions 47.02
Disposals -
At March 31,2024 167.02
Depreciation

At March 31, 2022 96.31
Charge for the year 9.30
Disposals -
At March 31, 2023 105.61
Charge for the year 2282
Disposals -
At March 31,2024 128.43
Net Block

At March 31, 2023 14.39
At March 31,2024 38.59
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Other assets Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2024|As at March 31, 2023| % ;I];:ﬂ' 31, | Asat March 31, 2023
T in Lakhs Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs % in Lakhs

Term deposits with banks with maturity above 12 months 208 271 - H

208 271 - -
Others
Security Deposits 12 12
Interest accrued but not due on deposits - - 120 144
Margin money with non-banking financial companies* - = 3272 2,764

A - 3,404 2,920

Total 208 271 3,404 2,920

Treade Receivables

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31, 2023

% in Lakhs

% in Lakhs

Service fees receivable

2,134

2,116

Total

2,134

2,116

* Placed as lien towards Business Correspondence arrangements

Ageing of the Trade receivable as on 31st March 2024

Particulars

Upto 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Un-disputed Trade

considered good

415.46

1,718.56

2,134.02

considered doubtful

Disputed Trade
receivables

considered good

considered doubtful

Disputed
dues(others)

Total

41540

1,718.56

2,134.02

Agel

ing of the Trade receivable as on 31st M

arch 2023

Particulars

Upto 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 vears

More than 3 years

Total

Un-disputed Trade
receivables

considered good

2,116.28

2,116.28

considered doubtful

Disputed Trade
receivables

considered good

considered doubtful

Disputed
dues(others)

Total

2,116.28

2,116.28

Cash and bank balances

Non-Current Portion

Current Portion

As at March 31, 2024|As at March 31, 2023 Aent ;;::ch A, As at March 31, 2023
% in Lakhs T in Lakhs . ¥in Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents ¥
Balances with banks
-0n Current accounts - - 356 1,813
-deposit with original maturity of less than three months - 3 487
Cash in hand - 23 197
- - 382 2,497
Other bank balances:
Deposit maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 - - 126 556
Deposit maturity for more than 12 months 208 271 - -
208 271 126 556
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (208) (271) - -
Total - - 508 3,054

* Earmarked balances with Banks relating to margin money against Term loans and Securitisation facility T 2.08 crores(PY Z 7.94 crores) and for employee

security deposit ¥ 1.26 crores (%118 crores).
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15 T, Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
31, 2024 2023
% in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Interest on portfolio loans 3,306 7,266
Service fee from business correspondence arrangements 2,315 1,616
Interest on securitization contracts 35 351
Other operating revenue: - ¥

Recovery against loans written off 2,707 2,385
Processing fees 145 321
Admistrative fees 15 97
Interest on: - -
Margin money deposits 229 224

Fixed Deposits 54 231
Total 8.805 12,491

16 Other & Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
er income
31, 2024 2023
Zin Lakhs 2 in Lakhs

Interest on:

IT Refund 5 146
Gain on Sale of assets 21 -
Liabilities written back - 28
Provisions written back 400 4.176
Miscellaneous income 33 14
Total 458 4,364

16{a) Provisions written back -
Contingent provision for standard assets - 1,135
Provision for non performing assets written back - 1,762

Provision for securitised/managed portfolio loans 205 1272
BC Books written back 194 -
Provision for other receivables - 6
Total 400 4,176

The company has maintained provision on BC books at 5% on the outstanding and on DA at 15%, excess provision has been written back.

16(b) Extra-ordinary Items

Provision on Gratuity written Back 278 -
Recognition of Assam Portfolio 4.150 .
Total 4,428 -
17
Employee benelits expenses Year ;;.d;g ;‘larth Year endze;lzl;larch 31,
T in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Salaries and bonus 4.551 5,068
Contributions to Provident Fund 512 540
Contributions to ESI 77 105
Director Sitting Fees 3 9
Gratuity expenses 92 170
Staff welfare expenses 514 625
Total 5,748 6,516
18 Year ended March | Year ended March 31,

Finance Costs

31, 2024 2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Interest on Borrwoing F] ~ 3,001 5722
Other Borrowing Cost 13 20
Taotal 3,014 5,742
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20

20(a)

21

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended March

Year ended March 31,

31, 2024 2023
T in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Depreciation of tangible assets 23 51
Amortisation of intangible assets 41 9
Total 64 60
Cithier sxpenises Year ;:dzegzi‘[arch Year cnd;;IzI;‘[arch 31,
Tin Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Rent 139 265
Rates and taxes 123 98
Repairs & maintenance - others 6 12
Travelling and conveyance 28 60
Bank Charges 43 79
Communication expenses 118 202
Printing and stationery 23 26
Legal and professional expenses 119 287
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 94 16
IT support charges 149 40
Insurance 53 48
Power and fuel 42 58
Membership and subscription 32 42
Other Office expenses 200 349
Miscellaneous expenses 9 31
Total 1,178 1,613
Payment to auditors:
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
31,2024 2023
T in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
As auditors:
Audit fee (excluding Goods and service tax) 94 11
Reimbursement of expenses = 5
Total 94 16
i : Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
Provisions and write-offs 31,2024 2023
% in Lakhs Z in Lakhs
Contingent provision for standard assets 4,025 -
Provision for Standard assets (Previous year) 4] -
Provision for Non-Standard assets 36 -
Provision on Other Receivables 27 783
Irrecoverable loans W/off - 2,054.47
Total 4,088 2,838
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24

25

' Year ended March | Year ended March 31
Earnings per share { EPS ) 31,2024 2023 i
Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Profit for the year 463 1,601
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (Numbers) 1,96,188 1,96,188
Basic & Diluted EPS 0 0

Details of Business Correspondence arrang executed with banks/NBFCs:
The Company has entered into DSAs with banks/NBFCs under the following terms:

Year ended March

Year ended’March 31,

Frrdcotmy 31,2024 2023

T in Lakhs % in Lakhs
Managed portfolio disbursed during the year 31,629.55 21,002.88
Closing balance of managed portfolio 37,912.62 20,430.63
Service fee recognised on Managed portfolio 2,314.94 1.616.44

Details of Securitised portfolio and income arising out of the same:
The information regarding the securitisation activity as an originator is shown below:

Particulars

Year ended March

Year ended March 31,

31,2024 2023
¥ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Total book value of the loan asset securitised during the year (A) 762.17
Sale consideration received for the loan asset securitised during the year (B) - 762.17
Gain on securitisation (B-A) - =
Portfolio loan securitised and outstanding as at the year end (including Minimum Retention Rate) - 363.54
Income from assets securitisation rece d during the year 34.85 351.02

(=1

Year ended March

Year ended March 31,

Particulars 31,2024 2023
T in Lakhs T in Lakhs

Credit enhancements provided and outstanding

Principal subordination = 84.69

Cash Collateral - 84.69

The Company has transferred all the rights and obligations relating to above Securitization loan assets to the buyers with which securitisation arrangements

(This space has been left intentionally blank)

-
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23 Loan portfolio and provision for standard and non-performing assets as at March 31, 2024:

Portfolio loans outstanding (Gross)

Provision for standard and non-performing assets

Portfolio loans outstanding (Net)

Asset classification Year ended March 31, Asat As at Provision Provision Year ended March 31,| Year ended March 31, As at
2024 March 31, March 31, made during written back / 2024 2024 March 31,
) 2023 (%) 2023 (%) the year ) utilised (3) ) ) 2023 (3)
Standard assets 3,527 12,767 - - - 123 3.404 12,644
Non-Performing assets 388 4,880 2,607 4,061 6,538 131 258 el
Total 3,915 17,647 2,607 4,061 6,538 ul 253 3,662 14,917
o
Loan portfolio and provision for standard and non-performing assets as at March 31,2023:
Portfolio loans outstanding (Gross) Provision for standard and non-performing assets Portfolio loans outstanding (Net)
Asset classification As at As at As at Provision Provision As at As at Asat
March 31, March 31, March 31, made during written back / March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 ®) 2022 (}) 2022 (%) the year () utilised (¥) 2023 %) 2023 X) 2022 (%)
Standard ass 12,767 43,372 1,135 - 1,135 - 12,767 42,237
Non-Performing assets 4,880 4,801 3,587 - 979 2.607 2233 1,214
Total 17,647 48,172 4,722 - 2,114 2,607 15,040 43,450
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27 (a)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

Segment reporting:

The Company operales in a single reportable segment i.e. giving loans and other related activities, which have similar risks and returns for the purpose of Accounting Standard-17 on

3 porting’. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. India.

Gratuity

The Campany has made provisions for the gratuity liability on account of its employees as at 31.03.2024 on the basis of actuarial valuations. There are two Gratuity Plans in operation
for (a) stafT employed upto 31.7.2011 and (b) staff employed after 31,7.201 1, The Company has contributed to two Group Gratuity Schemes with the LIC, which maintains the funds

separately for the gratuity liability under the two Plans.

The company does not have a system of leave encashment benefit ta its employees. No e

1 to be made by the company.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet
for the gratuity plan and the disclosures as required under AS — 15, Employee Benefits.

Expected rate of retum on assets
Expected average ing working life of employces

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Assumptions:

Discount rate 7.00%

Salary escalation T7.00%
Withdrawal rate 29.36%

7.22% & 7.67%
18 yrs and 28 yrs

As at March 31, 2023

7.30%
9.00%
30.25%
6.89% & 7.36%
19 yrs and 29 yrs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
(Amount ¥ in Lakhs) | (Amount ¥ in Lakhs)
Table Showing changes in present value of Defined Benefit obligation:
Present value of defined benefit obligations as at beginning of the year 1,237.98 1,096.37
Interest cost 83.23 78.06
Change in Gratuity valuation (213.82)
Past service cost - -
Current service cost 97.54 173.57
Benefit paid (97.81) (54.05)
Actuoarial loss on obligations (341.59) (55.97)
Present value of defined benefit obligations as at end of the year 765.53 1,237.98
Table showing fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 421.64 379.98
Expected return on plan assets 3174 27.58
Contributions B6.99 70.01
Benefits paid (97.80) (54.05)
Actuarial loss on plan assets (5.86) (1.87)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 436.71 421.64
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised:
Actuarial loss on obligations (341.59) (55.97)
Actuarial loss on plan assets 5.86 1.87
Actuarial loss recognised in the year (335.73) (54.10)
The to be recognised in the bal sheet and st of profit and loss:
Present value of obligations at the end of the year T65.53 1,237.98
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 43671 421.64
Net lighility recognised in balance sheet 32882 816.34
Exy Recognised in of profit and loss:
Past service cost = “
Current service cost 97.54 173.57
Interest cost 8323 78.06
Expected return on plan assets ' (31.74) (27.58)
Net Actuarial loss recognised in the year (335.73) (54,100
Expenses recognised in of profit and loss (186.70) 169.96
Actual return on plan assets 2588 25.71
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vii)  Amounts for the current and previous four years are as fi (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
i As at st March As at 3st As at 31st
Particula i 5
articulars 2024 March, 2023 March, 2022 As at 3st March, 2021 As at 315t March, 2020
Defined benefit obligations 765.53 1,237.98 1.096.37 995.97 175.46
Plan assets 436.71 421.64 379.98 330.94 277.81
Deficit (328.32) (816.34) (716.39) (663.03) (497.63)
Experience ad on plan liabilities [{gain)/loss] (341.59) (35.97) (137.64) (8.58) 140.07
Experience adj on plan assets [(gain)/loss) - 5.86 1.87 1.92 (12.57) 17.07
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due (o change on pli (335.73) (54.109 (135.71) (21.15) 157.14
viii)  The Major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of the fair value of Total Plan Asset are as follows:
As at March As at March 31,
31, 2024 2023
Life Insurance Company Limited - Fund 1008 100%
) The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment

market.

x) The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

(b}

(This space has been left intentionally blank)

Amount incurred as expense for defined contribution to Provident Fund is ¥ 512,14 lakhs (March 31, 2023: ¥ 539.52 lakhs)
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28 Related party disclosures

A. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Names of related parties

Holding Company ASA International Holding, Mauritius
Ulumate Holding Company ASA International Group Plc,

Pinoy Consultancy Private Limited
Entities under common control . .

Pagasa Consultancy Private Limited
Entity having significant influence IDFC First Bank Limited

Mr. Dirk Brouwer, Director

Ms. Karin Anne Maria Kerslen, Director

Mr. Anjan Dasgupta, Managing Director

Ms. Anuradha Gupta, Independent Direcior
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Ms, Nirajita Srinivasan, Independent Director

Mr. Patric Barla, Independent Director

Md. Azim Hossain, Chairperson

Mr. Enamul Hoque Director

Ms. Vanita Mundra , Company Secretary

B. Nature of transactions
Nature of transaction Name of Related Party March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Amount X in lakhs) (Amount R in lakhs)
Salary, Bonus and other allowances* Mr. Anjan Dasgupla 74.98 67.74
Contribution 1o provident fund Mr. Anjan Dasgupla 6.51 ~ 567
Salary, Bonus and other allowances* Mr. Subhrangsu Chakravarty - 9.50
Contribution to provident fund Mr. Subhrangsu Chakravarty - .84
Salary, Bonus and other allowances® Ms. Vanita Mundra 16.27 14.48
Contribution 1o provident [und Ms. Vanita Mundra 1.43 1.23
Reimbursement of Expenses Pinoy Consultancy Private Limited 0.20 0.84
Reimbursement of Expenses Pagasa Consultancy Private Limited 8.00 8.30
Director's Silting Fees Mr. Patric Barla 2.30 355
Director’s Silting Fees Ms. Nirajita Srinivasan 2.30 320
Dhirector’s Silting Fees Ms. Anuradha Gupta 1.40 175
BC Service Fees IDFC First Bank Limited 570.57 1,426.49
The company has not given any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Persons and Other Related Parties either severally or jointly with
any other persons which are (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
Name of Related Party As on March 2024 As on March 2023
(Amount T in lakhs) (Amount ¥ in lakhs)
Receivables:
IDFC First Bank BC Fees Receivables 2,134 1,719
Payable "
ASA International NV Principal Outstanding 826 -
ASA International NV Interest Outstanding 83 -
Mr. Anjan Dasgupta Salary Payable 3 -
Ms. Vanita Mundt Salary Payable 1 &
29 Leases ¥ = -

Operating lease: Company as lessee
Certain office premises are obtained on operating lease. The |ease term is for one to nine years and renewable for further periods either mutually or at the option of the Company.
There are no restrictions imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases and the leases are cancellable.

(Amount ? in lakhs)

Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 i
Operating lease expenses recognised during the year [Refer note 19] 139.45 263.18
Contingent Liabilities
(Amount T in lakhs)
Description March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 1
Demands/claims by Tax Authorities not acknowledged as debis and contested hy the Company:
Income Tax Authorities® R30.16 830,16
Total 830.16 830.16

ich has been conlested and appeal before the ITAT Kolkata Bench. The
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A}

B)

Loans under RBI Resolution Framework
The following ble set forth, for the periods indicated, details with respect (o loans where resolution plan has been implemented as per RBI Circular on "Resohution Framewaork for COVID-19

related stress” dated May 05, 2021,

Number of borrowers who aceepted restructuring Principal Outstanding of Restruetured borrowers ik Prln:;p:LOIl nding “rM " Provision as on March 31, 2024
Murch ructur rrowers as on Marc
under RF 2.0 as on March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs) 31, 2023 (% in lakhs) (T in lakhs)
24,132 2,329.96 16,235.02 122.97

The company follows a prudent strategy for provisioning and write off of portfolio. There has been no additional provisioning on aceount of pandemic caused losses.

During the year the company has earned a net profit of 2 486,22 Lakhs, as a result the company has been able to maintain the CRAR as preseribed by under RBI NBFC-MFI (Reserve Bank)
directions 2016,
The company has been able to generate positive cash Nows during the year and discharge all liabilities as and when they fell due,

Additional disclosure required by the Reserve bank of India:

Information on Net Interest Margin

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Average interest {a) NA NA

Average effective cost of borrowing (b) MNA NA

MNet interest margin {a-b) NA NA

*RBI has withdrawn its direction regarding Interest Margin 1o be charges subject to Board having adequate policy in this regard. The Board has approved an interest rate of 28.5% on MFI loans
to be provided by the company. Currently the company is disbursing loans at 1 5% under the NSFDC dishursement scheme.

Exposure to Gold Loan
The Company has no exposure 1o Gokl Loan directly or indirectly.

(This space has been left infentionally blank)
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) Disclosores required as per the Non Banking Fi ial Ci Non - §; lly Important Non-Deposit taking Company { Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:
Particulars Remarks
1. |Capital 1o Risk (Weighted) Assets Ratio Refer Note No. 33 (D)
2, |Investments The Company has no outstanding investments as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2022: Nil)
3. |Derivatives
i) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap X ’
ii) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives Company has ECB loans received in Indian Currency, hence no hedging is required.
i) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
i) Forward rate agreement/interest rate swap
4. |Disclosures relating o Securitisation
] Information duly certified by the SPV's auditors obtained by the originaling Refer Note No. 33 (Ei)
NBFC from the SPY.
ii) Details of Financial Assets sold 1o Securitisation / Recenstruetion Company for | The Company has not sold financial assets 1o securitisation or reconstruction company [or assets
Assel Reconstruction reconsiruction during ihe current year and previous year,
i) Details of Assignment transactions underiaken by NBFCs Refer Note No. 33 (Eii)
5. |Details of non-performing linancial assets purchased / sold
i Details of non-performing financial assets purchased : The Company has not p { sold e ming i ial assets during the current year and previous
year,
i) Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold :
6. Alsselllphhi]]ly Management Maturity patiern of certain items of Assets and Refer Note No, 33 (F) .
Liabilitics :
7. |Exposures
il Exposure 10 Real Estate Sector The Company has no exposure (o real estate directly or indirectly.
i) Exposure to Capital Market The Company has no exposure to capital market directly or indirectly.
B, |Details of financing of parent company products None
9. |Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) The Company has nol exceeded any limit in respect of SGL / GBL during the current and previous year.
exceeded by the NBFC
10, |Unsecured Advances Refer Note No. 33 (G)
1. [Miscellaneous
i) |Registration obtained from other ial seclor Refer Mote No. 33 (H)
i} |Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators No penalties were imposed by RBL and other regulators during the current year.
i) |Related Party Transactions Refer Note No. 27
ivi  |Ralings assigned by credil rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year | Refer Note No. 33 (1)
vl |Remuneration of Directors Refer Note No, 27
vi}  |Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period ilems and changes in accounting Refer Note No. 2 & 2.1,
policies
vii)  |Revenue Recognition Refer Note No. 2.1(h)
Qrandard 31 Lelared i
Vi) |[ACeRUnEng e FiggreRl (CFS) The Company does nol have any subsidiary or associate as on March 31, 2024 as well as March 31, 2023
hence AS 21 is not applicable w the Company. m
12, |Additional Disclosures
i) |Provisions and Contingencies Refer Note No. 33 (J)
i) |Draw Down from Reserves There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil)
.
i) |Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs ; ( 5, i
a)  |Concentration of Deposits (for deposit king NBFCs) This disclosure is not applicable as the Company as it is not a deposit taking NBFC.
by [Concentration of Advances Refer Note No., 33 (K)
¢} |Concentration of Exposure Refer Note No. 33 (K)
d)  |Concentration of NPAs Refer Note Mo, 33 (K)
€)  |Sector-wise NPAs Refer Note No. 33 (L)
Bl Mavemanlof NRAL Refer Note No. 33 (M)
vl |Overseas Assets ({or those with Joim Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad) The Company has no exposure or iransaction with overseas assets.
v} |Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required 10 be consolidated as per There are no ofl balance sheel exposure as on March 31, 2024,
Accounling norms)
13, |Disclosure of Complaints Refer Note No. 33 (N)
D) Capital to Risk -Assets Ratlﬂ_n{CRa\ R):

P I i

2
= 7,

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

Particulars AL RN As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

CRAR (%) S : 00 15.88 15.18
CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) s C 10.59 10.12
CRAR - Tier [1 Capital (%) s} Q 5.29 5.06
Amaount of subordinated debd raised as Tier-11 capital {INR in lakhs) 7 10.000 10000

i J 2 =
N\ 5
s/
% S

o

7 W
~Cred pccoS
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Ei)  Securitisation Transactions Entered during the vear

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

(Amount ¥ in lakhs)

(Amount T in lakhs) |

1 Mo of 5PYs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transaction

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC as on the date of balance
2 sheet
Towal amount of exposures retained by the NBFC 1o comply with MRR as on Lhe date of balance sheet

a Ofl-balance sheet exposures

First loss

Others

b |On-balance sheet exposures

First loss

Others

4 |Amount of exposures 1o securitisation ransactions other than MRR
a  |Off-balance sheet exposures

i |Expesure i own securitisalions

First loss

Others

ii Exposure 1o third party securitisations
First loss

Others

b |On-balance sheet exposures

i Exposure o own securilisations

First loss (fo the extent of fived deposiis placed )
Others

i Exg 1o third party securiti

First loss

Others

1

356.98

£4.69

Eii)  Details of assignment (ransactions underiaken:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Number ol accounts

Aggregate value (net of provision) of accounts sold

Aggregate consideration

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier year
Agpgregate gain/loss over net book value

{Amount ¥ in lakhs

tAmount ¥ in lakhs)

G} Unsecured Advances

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

(Amount ¥ in lakhs)

{Amount T in lakhs)

Portfolio loans (gross)

3.915.30

17.642.37

H)  Registration oblained from financial sector regulators:

Regulator

Registration No.

Ministry of Company AfTairs

L6592 1 WB1990PLC231683

Reserve Bank OF India

B-05.07T083

r’.’-\

-
pe




ASA Inter I India Microfi

Limited

CIN No: U592 1WEB1990PLC231683
Motes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

b

a

1]

K)

L)

M)

i)

iii}

v}

Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies ;

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

AAV 5.AR.L-Subdebt
Masala Investments S.A R.L-Subdebt

Short term non convertible debentures
Dwm Income Funds § C A Sicav Sif - The Trill Impact
Stichting Juridisch Eigenaar Actiam Institutional

MFI Grading
Code of conduct assessment Grading
Securitisation/Assignment:

Lily 06 2026
PTC Series Al

The above is based upon the latest rating letters available with the management,

Long term Facilities

Bank Rating ICRA BB (Stable)
Long term non convertible debentures

AAVSARL ICRA BB (Stable)
Masala Investments S.AR.L ICRA BB (Stabie)
CDC Group ICRA BB (Suble)

ICRA BB {Stable).
ICRA BB (Stable)

ICRA BB (Stable)
ICRA BB (Stable)
IAR MF1 2

IAR MFI 2

Closed

ICRA BB (+) (Negative)
ICRA BB (+) (Negative)
ICRA BB (+) (Negative)
ICRA BB (+) (Negative)

ICRA BB (+) (Negative)
ICRA BB (+) (Negative)

ICRA BB () (Negative)
ICRA BB (+) (Negative)
TAR MF1 2

TAR MF1 2

[ICRA] BBB (50)

Provisions and Contingencies :

(Amount ¥ in Inkhs)

Break up of ' Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Provision for standard and non performing assets (refer note 22)
Provision made towards income tax

Other provision and Contingencies (with details)

a) Provision for gratuity

b} Provision for leave benefits

€) Provision for managed portfolio loans

d) Provision for others

253.49

765.53

583.07

2,607.44

B16.34

Concentration of Advances, exposures and NPA's :

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

(Amouni ¥ in lakhs)

{Amount ¥ in lakhs)

Concentration of Advances
Total Advances 1o twenly largest borrowers! customers
Percentage of advances (o twenty largest borrowers [ customers (o otal advances

Concentration of Exposures
Total Exposures 1o twenty largest borrowers! cusiemers
Percentage of Exposures o twenty larges. borrowers/ customers to total Exposure

Concentration of NPAs
Total Exposures 1o top four NPA sccounts

9.63
0.25%

9.63
0.25%

213

15.10
0.00%

15.10
0.00%

3.66

Sector-wise NPAs @

Sector (

Percentage of NPAs (o Total

Advances in that sector

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Closing balance

e
S

v,

i} Agriculiure & alled aciivities 8.76% 26.71%
i) MSME 10.51% 26.80%
iii) Corporale borrowers - -
iv) Services 6.05% 52.95%
v} Unsecured persanal loans = =
vi) Aulo Joans - =
vii) Other personal loans i
Movement of NPA : {Amount 2 in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
[ T

Net NPA 1o Net Advances (%) £ L 3.69% J5.11%
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance 4,880.16 4.800.57
Additions during the year 311137 2,134.05
Reductions during the year (represents loan portfolio written-oiT) 7.603.07 205447
Closing balance 388.46 4. 880.16
Movement of NPAs (Netj
Opening halance 227273 1.213.77
Additions during the year - 2,134.06
Reduction during the year 2,137.76 1.075.11
Closing balance 134,97 227273
Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on dard assels)
Opening balance 2.607.43 3,586.80
Add: Provision made during the year - RP\ - 4,060.91 -
Less: Write-offf (write back) of excess provisions / %P\-' r @,;;\\ 6,537.53 979.36

b e ", d:}n Y 253.49 2,607.43
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F)

Assets Liability management:

Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2024

(Amount % in lakhs)

Over 3 months Over 3 years
Upto 30/31 days Over 1 month | Over 2 month & upto 6 Over 6. months | Over 1 year & SuptoS | OverSiyears Total
upto 2 months | upte 3 months & upto 1 year upto 3 years
months u years
Advances* 268.42 322.73 310.85 772.54 1,178.27 ; 1,062.49 - - 3,915.30
Deposits® 851.13 223.56 193.89 47243 1,269.94 598.20s - - 3,609.15
Borrowings 971.18 636.80 952.89 1,586.49 913,77 11,103.23 0.75 - 16,165.11

¥ The above information is computed by the management basis the repayment, factoring in restructuring related moratorium period and the same is relied upon by the auditors.

Maturity pattern of certain assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2023

(Amount ¥ in lakhs)

Over 3 months Over 3 years
Upto 30/31 days Over 1 month | Over 2 month & upto 6 Over 6 months | Over 1 year & Eupto s |OverSyears Total
upto 2 months | upto 3 months & upto 1 year upto 3 years
months years
Advances* 1,209.50 1,454.21 1.400.71 3,481.06 5,309.28 4,787.61 - - 17,642.37
Deposits 961.68 252.60 219.07 533.80 1,434.89 675.90 - - 4,077.93
Borrowings 24951 170.15 390.87 4,231.38 711250 13,374.60 0.75 - 25,529.76

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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c)

d)

]
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Customer Complaints :

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year = 5
No. of complaints received during the year 95 124
No. of complaims redressed during the year g1 129
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 4 &
The Company has a Customer Grievance Redressal Mechanism for convenience of customers to register their complaints and for Company to monitor and redress them,
The above information is as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors.
Frauds
Information on instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2024:
(Amount ¥ in lakhs)
Nature of fraud Ho.af Amount of Recovery Considered as recoverable Amount Provided for
cases fraud
Cash embezzlemen 79 235 246 - 0.29
Information on instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2023:
(Amount ¥ in lakhs)
No. of Amount of - o
Nature of fraud Recovery Considered as recoverable Amount Provided for
cases fraud
Cash embezzlement 115 7.03 6.03 - 0.99
The disclosure on the following mattes 1 under le 11T as ded not being relevant or applicable in the case of the company, same are not covered;

The company has nol traded or invested in erypto currency or vinual currency during the financial year.

No proceedings have heen initiated or are pending against the company lor holling any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibation) Act, 1988 (450f 1988) and rules made

thereunder.

The company has not been declared willful defaulier by any bank or financial i

The company has not entered in 1o any scheme of arrangement.

or g orany g

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961.

The company does not have any relationship with struck off companies.

Disclosure of ratios

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Formula

Remarks

Current Ratio (in times)

Debt Equity Ratio (in times)

Det Service Coverage Ratio {in times)
Return on Equity Ratio

Trade receivable umover ratio (in times)*

Trade payable turnover ratio (in times)
Inventory turnover ratio (in times)

Met capital turnover ratio (in imes)

Net Profit ratio (in %)

Return on capital employed (in %)

iRelurn on mvestment {in %)

Not Applicable
304
Nat Applicahle
0.12
Not Applicable

0.30%
Not Applicable

19.20%

351%

11.86%

Mot Applicable

Not Applicable
1.06

Not Applicable

Nol Applicable
0.85%
Not Applicable

9.21%

13.30%

44.29%

Mot Applicable

Total Dehis /

Debt equity ratio decrease due to

fund

Profit afier tax / Average Net Worth

Sundry Creditors/Operating Income

Net worth-Swstutory reserve/Opearting
Income
Profit & loss after tax / Total revenue
from operations

Prafit & loss afier wx / Total
shareholder's fund

|decrease in PAT

a in B g and
increase in Equity

Decrease on account of increase in
loss for the year due to higher
provisioning / write off

Net profit ratio decreases due 1o

Return on capital employed
decrease due W decrease in
average sharcholder's equity

* Companies Inan poniolio and other operating income receivables are treated as Other Receivables.

v iy
~Creg Accol

e st




P)

Disclosure relating to Derivative transactions

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap (Amount ¥ in lakhs)
Current Year As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 Previous Year As at 31.03.2023

(i) |The notional principal of - -
swap agreements

(ii) [Losses which would be
incurred if counterparties
failed to fulfil their NA NA
obligations under the
agreements

(iii) |Collateral required by the
applicable NBFC upon NA NA
entering into swaps

(iv) |Concentration of credit risk

arising from the swaps $ NA NA

(v) |The fair value of the swap

book @ NA NA

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the
accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps should also be disclosed.

Derivatives are fully hedegd so there is no risk of marked to market and the accounting was
also done on the basis of applicable accounting standards.

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives (Amount ¥ in lakhs)
S. Particulars Amount
No.
(i) [Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the
a) NA NA
b) NA NA
c) NA NA
(ii) |Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st
a) NA NA
b) NA NA
c) NA NA
(iii) |Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not
a) NA NA
b) NA NA
c) NA NA
(iv) [Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly
a) NA NA
b) NA NA
c) NA . ¢ +NA

Derivatives are fully hedegd so there is no risk of marked to market and the accounting was
also done on the basis of applicable accounting standards.

Quantitative Disclosures (Amount ¥ in lakhs)
SL.
No. |Particular Curency Derivatives Interest Rate Derivatives
(i) |Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
For hedging i - -
(i) [Marked to Market Positions [1]
a) Asset (+) NA NA
b) Liability (-) NA NA
(iii) |Credit Expoxsure [2] NA NA
(iv) |Unhedged Exposure NA NA

Derivatives are fully hedegd so there is no risk of marked to market and the accoy;jﬁ '“s&,ﬁ
also done on the basis of applicable accounting standards. /58
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36 Public diselosure on Liquidity risk
i. Funding concentration based on significant

party (both d and horrowings)

Funding concentration based on signifi counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) for the year ended March 31, 2024

Number of significant counter parties

(Amount ¥ in lakhs)

% of total deposits

% of total liabilities

6

16.165.11

NA

67.41%

Funding concentration based on significant

party (both deposits and borrowi

ngs) for the year ended March 31, 2023

Number of significant counter parties

(Amount ¥ in lakhs)

% of tolal deposits

% of total liabilities

L

25,529.76

NA

74.35%

ii. Top 20 large deposils (amount in Rs. In lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not Applicable. The Company being a Systemically

Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, MFI registered with Reserve Bank of India and does not sccept public deposits.

iii. Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs, In lakhs and % of total borrowings)

Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. In lakhs and % of total borrowings) for the year ended March 31, 2024
I (Amount ¥ in lakhs) [ % of total borrowings ’

| 16,165.11 | 100.00%

Top 10 borrowings (smount in Rs. In lakhs and % of total borrowings) for the year ended March 31, 2023
Amount ¥ in Inkhs % of total borrowin
98.91%

25,252.23

iv. Funding concentration based on significant instrument / product *

Funding ion based on significant instrumeni / product * for the year ended March 31, 2024

" of total liabilities

Name of the instrument/product (Amount T in lakhs)

Term loan from banks 2,500.00 15.47%
Non-Convertible debentures 11,296.78 69.88%
Term loans from financial instittions 1,542.33 9.54%
External commercial borrowings 826.00 S5.11%

Funding cc ion hased on significant instrument / product * for the year ended March 31, 2023

% of total liabilities

Name of the instrument/product (Amount  in lakhs)

Term loan from banks 2,500.00 9.79%
Nan-Convertible debentures 20,907.50 B1.89%
Term loan from Non banking Fi ial Companies 1,372.26 5.38%
Term loans from financial institutions 750.00 2.94%

External commercial borrowings =

v. Stock ratios

Stock ratios_for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Particulars as a % of total public funds as a % of lotal liabilities as a % of total assets
Commercial papers NA NA NA
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less

than cone year) NA NA NA
Other short term liabilities NA NA NA

Stock ratios for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars as a % of total public funds as a % of total liabilities as a % of total asseis
Ci ial papers NA NA T NA
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less

than one year) NA NA NA
Ohther short term liabilities NA NA NA

vi. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

(

The Company's Board of Director's has the overall responsibility of management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the strategic policies and procedures of the Company

o manage liquidity risk in accordance with the risk tolerance/limits decided by it

The Company also has o Risk management Committee, which is a sub-commitiee of the Board and is responsible for evaluating the overall risk faced by the Company

including liquidity risk.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company is responsible ensuring adherence o the risk tolerance/limits us well as implementing the liguidity risk

management strategy of the Company.
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*Notes
1. A "Significant party” is defined as a single party or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the

NBFC-NDSIs, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs,

2. A “significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the
NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total labilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

3, Total Tiabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and Reserve/Surplus.

ek

4. "Public funds” shall include funds raised either directly or indirectly through public deposits, ¢ ial paper, . inter-corp deposits and bank finance
but excludes funds raised by issue of instruments compulsorily convertible into equity shares within a period of exceeding 10 years from the date of issue as defined in
Regulatory Fr k for Core In issued vide Notification No. DNBS (PD) CC. No. 206/03.10.001/2010-11 dated January 5, 2011,

5. The amount stated in this disclosure is based on the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024,

{This space has been left intentionally blank)
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37

38

Disclosure as required under Rule 11(e) and Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

1. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding, whether
recorded n writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in a party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries).

2, The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

3. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company.

The previous year figures have been reclassified/ regrouped/ restated to confirm to current year's classification.

For Shankar Sarafl & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants A International India Microfinance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No,

S

Subham Tulsian
Partner
Membership No. 313573

Md Enamul
Director
DIN 02961971

Vanita Mundhra S
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary |
Date: 27th June, 2024 Membership No. A23546. "
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Chartered Accountants E-mail : shankar@ssaa.co.in

Date: 19th of August, 2024

To,

The Board of Directors

ASA International India Microfinance Limited

Victoria Park, 4th Floor, GN-37/2, Sector Salt Lake City,
Kolkata-700091, West Bengal

Sir,

Regarding _: Statutory Audit for the financial year 2023-24
Subject : Intimation of UDIN — matter regarding

Please refer to above captioned subject. We do hereby state that the Statutory Audit of your
company had been conducted by us on 27/06/2024. The Unique Document Identification No.
(UDIN) i respect of the above audit has been generated which is provided below:-

Documert UDIN Date UDIN

Statutory Audit 27/06/2024 24313573BKCABD3256

You are requested to intimate the UDIN of Statutory Audit to all shareholders and other
persons fo whom the audited financial statements are forwarded.

Thanking 7 ou,
Yours Faiiiifully,

For Shankar Saraf & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 325896E

Subham Tuisian
Partner
t ICAT Membership No. 313573



